
2525 CIRCLE DRIVE • SCOTTSBLUFF, NEBRASKA 69361 • (308) 630-6243 • FAX (308) 630-6294

SCOTTSBLUFF CITY
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA

Monday, March 11, 2019, 6:00 PM
City Hall Council Chambers, 2525 Circle Drive, Scottsbluff, NE 

69361

PLANNING 
COMMISSIONERS

BECKY ESTRADA
CHAIRPERSON

ANGIE AGUALLO
VICE CHAIRPERSON

DANA WEBER

HENRY HUBER

MARK WESTPHAL

CALLAN WAYMAN

DAVID GOMPERT

JIM ZITTERKOPF

ANITA CHADWICK 

LINDA REDFERN
ALTERNATE

1.    WELCOME TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING:  Chairman  

2. NEBRASKA OPEN MEETINGS ACT: For all interested parties, a copy of the 
Nebraska Open Meetings Act is posted on a bulletin board at the back of the council 
chambers in the west corner.

3. ROLL CALL: 

4. NOTICE OF CHANGES IN THE AGENDA: Additions may not be made to this agenda 
less than 24-hours prior to the beginning of the meeting unless added under item 5 of 
this agenda.

5. CITIZENS WITH ITEMS NOT SCHEDULED ON THE REGULAR AGENDA: As 
required by State Law, no item may be considered under this item unless the Planning 
Commission determines that the matter requires an emergency action.

6. APPROVAL OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES FROM:
A Approve Minutes of the February 11, 2019 Meeting

7. GGO ZONE:
A Discuss and consider action on GGO Zone.

8. 26 GROUP LLC:
A Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of reviewing and obtaining comment 

on a redevelopment Plan submitted by 26 Group, LLC for the Fuel Station 
and Convenience Store Project. 

The area to be redeveloped under the Redevelopment Plan is legally described as Lot 
1, Block 1, Western Addition, City of Scottsbluff, Scotts Bluff County, Nebraska.  
This Redevelopment Plan includes a request for tax increment financing.

9. RESOLUTIONS:
A Consider Resolution recommending approval of the Redevelopment Plan 

submitted by 26 Group, LLC for the Fuel Station and Convenience Store 
Project to the Community Redevelopment and City Council.

10. STAFF REPORTS:
A None

11. OTHER BUSINESS:
A None

12. CLOSED SESSION (TO CONSIDER ANY OF THE ABOVE MATTERS, WHERE A 
CLOSED SESSION IS APPROPRIATE.):
A Following passage of motion to enter into executive session, presiding officer 

must state purpose of executive session.

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 1 / 36



2525 CIRCLE DRIVE • SCOTTSBLUFF, NEBRASKA 69361 • (308) 630-6243 • FAX (308) 630-6294

13. ADJOURN

The public is invited to participate in all Planning Commission Meetings.  If you need special accommodations to participate in the meeting, 
please contact the Development Services Department at (308) 630-6243, 24-hours prior to the meeting.

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 2 / 36



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, March 11, 2019

Regular Meeting

Item Appr. Min.1

Approve Minutes of the February 11, 2019 Meeting

Staff Contact: 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 3 / 36



    PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
      REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 
     February 11, 2019 
             6:00 PM 
          SCOTTSBLUFF, NEBRASKA 
 
 
The Planning Commission of the City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska met in regular scheduled meeting on 
February 11, 2019, at 6:00 PM in the Scottsbluff Council Chambers, at 2525 Circle Drive, Scottsbluff, 
Nebraska.  A notice of the meeting had been published in the Star-Herald, a newspaper of general 
circulation in the city, on January 25, 2019 and February 1, 2019. The notice stated the date, time, and 
location of the meeting, that the meeting was open to the public, anyone with a disability desiring 
reasonable accommodation to attend the Planning Commission meeting should contact the 
Development Services Department , and that an agenda of the meeting kept continuously current was 
available for public inspection at Development Services Department office; provided; the city Planning 
Commission could modify the agenda at the meeting if the business was determined that an emergency 
so required. A similar notice, together with a copy of the agenda, also had been delivered to each 
Planning Commission member. An agenda kept continuously current was available for public inspection 
at the office of the Development Services Department at all times from publication to the time of the 
meeting. 
 
Item 1: At 6:01 PM, Chairman Angie Aguallo called the meeting to order. Roll call consisted of the 
following members. Linda Redfern, Anita Chadwick, Jim Zitterkopf, Becky Estrada, Callan Wayman, Dave 
Gompert, Angie Aguallo.   
Absent:  Mark Westphal, Henry Huber, Dana Weber. City officials present were Anthony Murphy, City 
Fire Marshal and Gary Batt, Code Administrator II. 
 
Item 2: Chairman Aguallo informed those present of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act and that a copy 
was posted in back of the council chambers in the west corner. 
 
Item 3: Acknowledgement of any changes on the agenda; None. 
 
Item 4: Business not on the agenda; None. 
 
Item 5: Citizens with business not on the regular agenda: None. 
 
Item 6: The minutes from the January 14, 2019 meeting were reviewed. 
 
Conclusion: A motion was made by Wayman and second by Gompert to approve the minutes from the 
January 14, 2019 meeting. “Yeas”:  Zitterkopf, Estrada, Wayman, Gompert, Aguallo.  “Nays”: None,  
“Abstained”: Redfern, Chadwick,  “Absent”: Westphal, Huber, Weber.  Motion Carried. 
 
Item 7: The Planning Commission opened a public hearing to consider designating an area bounded by 
US Highway 26 on the northeast, East Overland Drive on the south and 21st Avenue on the west as 
blighted and substandard. Batt reported that a study has been done and submitted for review of the 
above location containing 37.79 acres.  The study examines existing conditions of land use, buildings, 
infrastructure, development patterns and general health, safety welfare aspects within the designated 
study area in the City of Scottsbluff. There are a numbers of opportunities for redevelopment existing 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 4 / 36



along and adjacent to this corridor in this Proposed Study Area. The corridors surrounding this area have 
some long standing successful business as well as recently developed local owned business and a 
National chain commercial growth. This study shows that the area considered for blighted and 
substandard has non-existent development. 
 
Batt also informed the Planning Commission members that the City is allowed to designate up to 35% of 
its area within the corporate limits as blighted and substandard. Currently the total acreage within the 
City of Scottsbluff is 4,275.95 acres. Currently the city has just under 1048 acres designated as blighted 
and substandard slightly more than 24% of the Cities total acreage. The proposed additional blighted 
and substandard area consists of 37.79 acres. Adding this proposed area to the existing blighted and 
substandard area brings the total blighted and substandard area to 185.7 acres or 25.4% of the total 
area of the City of Scottsbluff, remaining well within the 35% providing future opportunity to add more.  
 
With the area designated as blighted and substandard developers will be able to apply for TIF funds to 
aid in infrastructure, extending utilities, and street within the area for development. This area is 
excellent for triggering new activity where adequate market forces are not present to move 
development in a positive direction. Batt stated the current zoning is M-1. Batt said the City gave a 
positive recommendation that City Council approve the blighted and substandard survey for area #12 be 
approved. 
 
Dave Schaff spoke to the Planning Commission  explaining the purpose of the study and what potential 
benefits for the location could be and the area would be eligible for TIF to be used as an incentive for 
development. Jim Zitterkopf asked about drainage of the acreage and CallanWayman asked about the 
35%. Dave explained the drainage is located at the southeast corner and the State of Nebraska  appears 
to have cleaned or attempted to clean that location. Dave explained the requirements for allowing up to 
35% to be blighted and substandard. 
 
John Selzer Jr. spoke about the statutory regulations and that those are being  met. John spoke about 
the following government entities that are involved  NRD, Scottsbluff Public School s, ESU 13, WNCC, 
and Scottsbluff County. 
 
The public hearing then closed with no further comment. 
 
Conclusion: A motion was made by Wayman and second by Estrada for a positive recommendation  to 
approve an area bounded by US Highway 26 on the northeast,  East Overland Drive on the south and 
21st Avenue on the west  as blighted and substandard. “Yeas”:  Redfern, Chadwick, Zitterkopf, Estrada, 
Wayman,Gompert, Aguallo. “Nays”: None.  “Abstained”: None.  “Absent”: Westphal, Huber,Weber. 
Motion Carried. 
 
Item 8: No further business, a motion was made to adjourn at 6:20 PM. By Zitterkopf and second by 
Estrada.  “Yeas”: Redfern, Chadwick, Zitterkopf, Estrada, Wayman, Gompert, Aguallo.  “Nays”: None   
“Abstained”: None  “Absent”: Westphal, Huber, Weber.  Motion Carried. 
 
 
 
 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 5 / 36



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, March 11, 2019

Regular Meeting

Item GGO1

Discuss and consider action on GGO Zone.

Staff Contact: 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 6 / 36



U.S. HIGHWAY 26

W 42ND ST

AV
E 

I

AV
E 

B

E 42ND ST

E 20TH ST

W 27TH ST

E OVERLAND DR

S BELTLINE HIGHWAY E

W OVERLAND DR
S BELTLINE HIGHWAY W

21
ST

 AV
E

E 27TH ST

BR
OA

DW
AY

CITY ROUTE

W 20TH ST

U.S. HIGHWAY 26

5T
H 

AV
E

HI
GH

WA
Y 7

1

HIGHWAY 26

±

Legend
Highway
Main Road
Corporate_Limits
Gateway_Green_Zone

Map by Jon Reiter: City of Scottsbluff 
Coordinate System:

NAD 1983 StatePlane Nebraska FIPS 2600 Feet
Lambert Conformal Conic

The City makes no representation or warranty as to the accuracy, 
timeliness, or completeness, and in particular, its accuracy 

in labeling or displaying dimensions, contours, property boundaries, 
or placement or location of any map features thereon. 

3/8/2019

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 7 / 36



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, March 11, 2019

Regular Meeting

Item 26 Group1

Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of reviewing and 
obtaining comment on a redevelopment Plan submitted by 26 
Group, LLC for the Fuel Station and Convenience Store Project. 
The area to be redeveloped under the Redevelopment Plan is legally described as Lot 1, Block 1, Western 
Addition, City of Scottsbluff, Scotts Bluff County, Nebraska.  This Redevelopment Plan includes a 
request for tax increment financing.

Staff Contact: 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 8 / 36



 Simmons Olsen Law Firm, P.C., L.L.O. 
 Attorneys at Law 

 
Howard P. Olsen, Jr.* 
Rick L. Ediger 

Steven W. Olsen 
Kent A. Hadenfeldt 
John L. Selzer 

Adam A. Hoesing 
Leslie A. Shaver** 
Jonathan C. Hunzeker* 
Elizabeth A. Stobel 
Megan A. Dockery 
Paul W. Snyder 
 
    *Also admitted in Wyoming 

   **Also admitted in Colorado 

 
 

1502 Second Avenue 
Scottsbluff, Nebraska 69361-3174 

(308) 632-3811 
Fax (308) 635-0907 

 
Website: www. simmonsolsen.com 

E-mail: jlselzer@simmonsolsen.com 

John A. Selzer, Of Counsel 
Steven C. Smith, Of Counsel 

                 ___________ 
 

Robert G. Simmons, Jr. (1918-1998) 

John F. Simmons, Retired 

 
ALLIANCE OFFICE 

129 East 5th Street 
Alliance, NE 69301 

(308) 761-0474 
 

Please Direct All Correspondence  
To Scottsbluff Office 

 

To: City of Scottsbluff Planning Commission 

From: John L. Selzer, Deputy City Attorney 

Date: March 7, 2019 

Re: Fuel Station and Convenience Store Redevelopment Plan 

 

Introduction:  At your March 11, 2019 meeting you will conduct a public hearing regarding the Redevelopment 

Plan for the Fuel Station and Convenience Store Project (the “Plan” and the “Project”).  The Plan in your meeting 

packet is a preliminary plan and there may be updates to the Plan by the time of your meeting.  However, there are 

no updates expected which would change the issues addressed in this memo.  The proposed Project is in an area that 

has been designated as blighted and substandard and in need of redevelopment.  After the public hearing, you will 

make a recommendation regarding the Plan and Project to the Scottsbluff Community Redevelopment Authority 

(“CRA”) and City Council. 

 

Standard of Review:  The Planning Commission is tasked with reviewing and recommending whether the Project 

and Plan conform to the general plan for development of the City as a whole.  Thus, you must analyze whether the 

Project and Plan conform to the 2016 Scottsbluff Comprehensive Plan (the “Comprehensive Plan”). 

 

Issues Relevant to Your Review:  The Project Site is located at Lot 1, Block 1, Western Addition, City of 

Scottsbluff, Scotts Bluff County, Nebraska.  The address is 1007 E. Hwy 26, Scottsbluff, Nebraska.  According to 

the Comprehensive Plan, the Project Site is located in the Southeast Industrial and Commercial District.  This area is 

characterized as having active daytime and nighttime hours, heavy personal and commercial vehicular traffic, a wide 

variety of buildings and a high amount of noise and smells tolerated closer to Highway 26.  Under the theme, 

“Growing as a regional leader of commerce and economic opportunity” this area is listed as a “key area for heavier 

commercial and industrial.”  The Comprehensive Plan provides the following principles for sustainable development 

in this area:  

 

• Plans and investments to increase economic viability of business corridor in East Overland. 

• Encourage infill development through mitigation of blighted properties and incentives. 

• Economic industrial growth on City periphery along Highway 26 and South 21st Avenue.   

 

The Project Site is zoned as M-1 (Light Manufacturing and Industrial), which includes convenience stores with 

dispensing gasoline as a permitted use.  Thus, no zoning changes are necessary.  

 

Conclusion:  If at the conclusion of the public hearing, the Planning Commission feels that the proposed Project and 

Plan conform to the Comprehensive Plan, it may recommend approval of the Plan and Project to the CRA and City 

Council.  A proposed resolution has been provided. 

 

      Very truly yours, 

      SIMMONS OLSEN LAW FIRM, P.C., L.L.O 

      /s/ John L. Selzer 

      John L. Selzer, Deputy City Attorney 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 9 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 10 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 11 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 12 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 13 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 14 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 15 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 16 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 17 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 18 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 19 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 20 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 21 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 22 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 23 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 24 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 25 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 26 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 27 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 28 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 29 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 30 / 36



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 31 / 36



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, March 11, 2019

Regular Meeting

Item Resolution1

Consider Resolution recommending approval of the 
Redevelopment Plan submitted by 26 Group, LLC for the Fuel 
Station and Convenience Store Project to the Community 
Redevelopment and City Council.

Staff Contact: 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 32 / 36



RESOLUTION _______ 

 

  

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

SCOTTSBLUFF, NEBRASKA: 
 
Recitals: 

 

a. Pursuant to the Community Development Law, NEB. REV. STAT. § 18-2101 et seq., a 
redevelopment plan titled Fuel Station and Convenience Store, prepared by 26 Group, LLC (the 

“Redevelopment Plan”) has been submitted to the Planning Commission. 

 

b. The Planning Commission has reviewed the Redevelopment Plan as to its conformity with 
the 2016 Scottsbluff Comprehensive Plan (the “Comprehensive Plan”). 

  

Resolved: 

 

 1. The Planning Commission finds that Redevelopment Plan conforms to the Comprehensive 

Plan and recommends approval of the Redevelopment Plan to the Scottsbluff Community Redevelopment 
Authority and City Council. 

 

 2. All prior resolutions of the Commission in conflict with the terms and provisions of this 

Resolution are repealed to the extent of such conflicts. 
 

 3.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 

PASSED and APPROVED on March ___, 2019 
. 

 

 PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY 

 OF SCOTTSBLUFF, NEBRASKA 

 

 

ATTEST: By:  ___________________________________ 
  Chair 

 

 
By:  ___________________________________ 

 Recording Secretary 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 33 / 36



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, March 11, 2019

Regular Meeting

Item Staff Rep1

None

Staff Contact: 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 34 / 36



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, March 11, 2019

Regular Meeting

Item Oth Bus.1

None

Staff Contact: 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 35 / 36



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, March 11, 2019

Regular Meeting

Item Clo Sess1

Following passage of motion to enter into executive session, 
presiding officer must state purpose of executive session.

Staff Contact: 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 3/11/2019 Page 36 / 36


